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TMJA 
Released April2014 1 THE REPORTER: For the record, my name 

2 is David Gilleran. I'm t h e video recording device 

3 operator and officer for this affidavit. My 

4 business address i s 180 Nort h LaSalle Street, 

5 Suite 2424, Chicago , Illinois . This affidavit is 

6 being videotaped. The date i s October 4, 2006. 

7 The time is 2:24 p.m. We are at 4:55 East 

8 Ill i n o is Street, Chicago, Illinois. Counse lor. 

9 MR. J OHNSON: Yes. For the r ecord, I 

10 would just like to state that this affidavit is 

11 being taken in con j unction wi th my conver sations 

12 with t h e attorney for the archdiocese of J o l i e t, 

13 Jim Byrne, in preparation for submission to the 

14 Catholic Revie-v1 Committee, which is investigat ing 

15 

16 sexual misconduct with a minor, in the ma tter of 

17 , then a minor , and father James 

18 Burnett , who -v1as a p riest a t St. Mary's Catholic 

19 Church, in Mokena, Illinois. Is that f air? 

20 THE AFFIANT: Correct. 

21 MR. JOHNSON : Alright. ~lright. With 

22 - - And also, as I had indicated to Jim today, I 

( 23 had been requested by the a ttorney for lllll 

24 who has a case pending against Father 
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1 Burnett in Will County, to provide a copy of the 

2 affidavits t aken here today, and subject t o the 

3 consent o f the affiants today, this a ff idav it may 

4 b e used i n tha t matter, t o the extent t hat t~e 

5 parties or the court fee l it r elevant. Wi t h that, 

6 c ou ld we swear in the witness? 

7 THE REPORTER: Mrs . would you 

8 p l eas e raise your right hand? 

9 (WHEREUPON, the affiant 

10 was duly sworn. } 

11 A- F - F- I -D-A-V-I -T 

12 BY MR. JOHNSON: 

13 Q. There' s usually a couple of preambles 

14 when we make a f fidavits i n writ t en form that I 

15 wi l l ask you at the front end. You are over 18 

16 years of age. Is that correct? 

17 A. Yes , that ' s correct . 

18 Q. Alright. And you' re going to ans wer 

19 questions that I may ask of you today , to the best 

20 of your ability . 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. And, if called at trial, y ou would be 

( 23 abl e to competently tes t i fy t o the facts and 

24 guestions that I a s k you today . Is that f air? 

VIDEO I NSTANTER, I NC. (312) 641- 3605 
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A. Yes . 

Q. Alright. And could you p lease state 

your full n ame for t he record again? 

A. 

Q. Okay. And you are born in what year? A. -
Q. How about your birth date? 

A. 

Q. Okay. And could you tell me who you are 

married to and your children? 

Q. Okay. And we 're really talking about 

- today . Is t hat fair? 

A. Yes . 

Q. Al right. Before we s tart wi th respect 

t o questions about your knowledge of - s first 

confession and facts related thereto, I'd also 

like to see i f you would take with us today 

another oath. You took a civil oath just a little 

while a go where you were asked to raise your hand 

and to testify many t imes before a civil 

proceeding. Fair enough? 

A. Okay. 

VIDEO I NSTANTER, INC . (312) 641 - 3605 
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Q. So a deposition, or a statement, or an 

affidavit like this might be submitted in a trial 

in a court of law. Fair enough? 

A. Yes. 

5 

Q. Alright. But did I also review with you 

shortly before we started the videotape the 

definition of an oath as given under the Catholic 

Encyclopedia, namely "an oath is an invocation to 

God to witness the truth of a statement." We 

talked about that generally before --

A. Right. 

Q. -- we started this statement. Correct, 

or affidavit? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And are you willing to answer questions 

and give testimony today consistent with that 

religious definition of an oath within the 

Catholic Church? 

A. Definitely. 

Q. You understand that allegations of 

sexual misconduct with a minor by a cleric or a 

priest, in particular, is a very serious charge? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

And you certainly would not give any 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC. (312) 641-3605 
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1 false testimony in questions that surround that 

2 issue . Is that fair? 

3 A. That 's fair. 

4 Q. Alright. I would like to just get a 

5 little background information a bout you. I'm sure 

6 -- I was deposed once and I was a litt l e nervous 

7 when they were asking questions of me. So coul d 

8 you tell me a little bit about your background and 

9 history and growi ng up. First of all, where were 

10 you born? What was your maiden name? Where did 

11 you go to grade school, high school, college? 

12 A . Okay. I was born in 

13 Illinois. I'm the middle child . My maiden name 

14 is 

15 Q. Let me interrupt , as lawyers d o many 

16 times . What does your dad do for a living? 

17 A. He was 

18 Q. Okay. And how many brothers and sisters 

19 did you have? 

20 A . I jus t have one o lder brother and one 

21 younger sister. 

22 Q. Okay. And you went to Catholic grade 

23 schools? 

24 A. I went to Catholic school. Ou r Ca t holic 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC. (312 ) 641 -3605 
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2 Q. And where was that located about? 

3 

4 

5 Q. Okay. And you got out of there in 

6 eighth grade. Right? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. In 19 

9 A. 

10 Q. I think I'm c l ose to the same age. I 

11 won't disclose what that i s, but we got out o f 

12 high school -- or grade school in - Right? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. After 'II you went on to --

15 A. 

16 and now I'm 

17 not sure i f it's still t here. 

18 Q. Okay. That was a Catholic 

19 A. All girls Catholic. 

20 Q. All girls Cathol ic h igh school. 

21 A. And I graduated in-

22 Q. Okay . And did you have any schooling 

I. 

i. 23 after h i gh school, specifically college ? 

24 A . Yes. I went to for one 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC. (312) 641- 3605 
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2 Q. And at or about graduating from high 

3 school and then your first year of college, did 

4 you happen to meet the man that ultimately became 

5 your husband? 

6 A. Yes, I did. 

7 Q. Okay. Tell me a little bit about -- a 

8 short history about how you met-

9 

10 

11 

12 Q. Okay. Did you ultimately get married to 

13 -

14 A. Yes, I did. 

15 Q. Alright. What was the date of your 

16 marriage to 

17 A. The date was 

18 Q. Okay. And I know this is rather 

19 personal but I thought it might be appropriate to 

20 get all of this out. You had -- Your first 

21 child's name was? 

22 

( 23 

24 
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2 

3 Q. Okay. And you were a practicing 

4 Catholic at that point in time? 

5 A. Yes. 

6 

7 
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12 

13 
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15 

16 A.-
17 Q. 

18 A. 

19 Q. Alright. Tell me a little bit about the 

20 circumstances surrounding difficul t i es that you 

21 had in getting your 

22 

~ · 23 

24 
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13 Q. You -- Your in- l aws were and still are 

14 active Catholics? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. Your parents were and still are active 

17 Catholics? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. And you were an active Catholic at the 

20 time? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. Can you tell me what you were taught at 

23 or about that time about how important it was to 

24 get your child baptized and especially as to when 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC. (312) 641-3605 
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it was to take place in relation to his or her 

birth? 

A. When I went to the Catholic school 1 I 

was told that your child would not go to heaven 

unless he was baptized and, typically, from my 

mother, you know, you were told you don't go out 

of the house with your baby until that baby's 

baptized, which is usually two to three weeks 

after birth. 

Yeah. I think that 's what happened with 

me as well. So you go basically from the home --

A. Right. 

Q. - - to the church to get baptized. 

A. Right. 

Q. So there was no chance t hat a baby would 

die without being baptized. 

A. Right. 

Q. Did you have a conc ern of getting -

timely baptized for his wel l - being within the 

Catholic Church? 

A. Yes, I did. 

Q. So tell me what efforts you a nd your 

husband did to get your son baptized in a timely 

way. 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC . (312) 64l-3605 
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2 Holy Founders, I contacted St. Isidore's Church in 

3 Blue Island, which was the next closest church to 

4 us. It was actually the parish we should've been 

5 in, but we were so used to Seven Holy Founders we 

6 kept going there. They asked me if I was a member 

7 of that parish and I told them no and they said, 

8 well, then sorry, they could not baptize my child. 

9 Q. Okay. And then your husband, I believe, 

10 contacted another priest? 

11 A. Actually my mother did. 

12 Q. Your mother. Okay. 

13 A. She contacted a priest. My brother used 

14 to go to She contacted a 

15 priest at- He said he'd be more than happy 

16 to baptize the child and he made arrangements at 

17 St. Peter and Paul Church to baptize-

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

\ 23 

24 
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4 A. 

5 Q. 

6 

7 

8 A. 

9 Q. Okay. Fair enough. And 

10 did that event of having a priest refuse to 

11 baptize your son, IIIII in a timely way have some 

12 impact upon your relationship with the Catholic 

13 Church 1n some years to come? 

14 A. Yes. I mean, from e verything I was 

15 taught .and raised I just couldn't believe that 

16 that happened. I mean, I just -- I just couldn't 

17 believe. 

18 Q. Were you upset -- upset as a mom and as 

19 upset as a Catholic? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 

22 

c 23 

24 
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A.-
A. -

Q. Okay. And, in any event, that may be a 

subject we can bring up with your husband if 

anybody cares to ask, but he did 

shortly after this walk. with another 

priest. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Alright , Let ' s jump start to another 

topic. Could you -- At some point in time you 

Mokena. Is that fair? 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC. (312) 641 - 3605 
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A. Then it was an empty area. Yes. 

Q. Empty area. Alright. And the parish 

out there is what? 

A. St. Mary's. 

Q. St. Mary's. And how close was your 

house to St. Mary's? 

A . Probably a 5-minute drive. 

Q. Okay. Do you remember the street 

address, or --

Q. Okay. In Mokena. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Alright. And I wonder if you could just 

give us a little bit about -- tell us about your 

custom and practice of raising your, you know, 
• 

children in Mokena. Where did they go to grade 
' 
school? Did they go to CCD, things like that. 

A. Okay. 

Q. What was your general routine? 

A. Generally, we enrolled the children in 

the public school near our house, so that they 

could walk there and back. It was 

School and we found out that it was a good school 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC. (312) 641-3605 
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system, so we stayed there. However, I felt it 

was important for my kids to learn the Cathol ic 

fai th. Whether they decide to c hoose to continue 

with it o r not , I wanted them to lea rn . 

Q. Sure. 

A. So they went to CCD and t hey went from 

first grade through eighth grade. 

Q. Okay. I think I have the third grade 

math right, butllllll for example, told us that h e 

graduated from high s chool in lllll Does that 

sound about right? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Right. And if my third grade -- So that 

would be a s chool year of '91 to '92. It starts 

in '91 and ends in '92. That means he would've, 

four years before that , i f my third grade math is 

correct, he would've been in eighth grade 

graduating in 1988. Is that right? Does t hat 

sound ab out right? 

A . Yes. 

Q. About right? I' 11 ask -

A. Okay . 

Q. I t h ink that 's about right. So, if he 's 

in eighth grad e -- graduates from e ighth grade in 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC. (312) 641 - 3605 
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'88, that means he gets out of s eventh grade in 

'87, out of sixth grade in ' 86, out of fi fth grade 

in 1985, out of four th gra de in 1984 , out o f third 

grade in 1983, and in second grade would've 

s panned t he f all of '81 to the spring o f '82. Is 

that right? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does that sound about right? 

A. Sounds right. 

Q. Alright. As far as you can recall, did 

receive his first confession and his first 

communion. in s econd g rade , which we be lieve is, at 

l east at this juncture, is about the year '81-'82 

school year? 

A. Yes . 

Q. Alright. I think I'd l ike to hold up 

f or the video camera some pictures t h a t we have, 

and I wonder if you could just zoom in on this, 

19 IIIII Could you just hold this one up? 

20 A. Sure . 

21 Q. And could you just - - Yeah, there you 

22 go. And is that a picture o f at 

23 or about s econ d grade or so? 

24 A. Yes . 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC. (312) 641-3605 
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T SCAN FROM THE DIOCESE OF JOLIET NO? 1235 

Q. Alright. Okay. And could you tell me 

what this picture is? 

A . Okay. 

Q. There's two pictures. One on the top, 

one o n the botto m. 

A. There a r e two pic tures and they' re both 

poorly done, but it's with his first 

communion cake and it's with the 

priest during the first communion. 

Q. Okay. Let's go chr onological l y firs t . 

He probably has the communi on first. 

A. Well, f i rst. Yeah. 

Q. So let's go to the bottom picture first 

of - if that' s okay. So - - And let' s just 

keep i t there f o r a second, if you would . So it 

appears that somebody's putting something over his 

head. Might that be a rosary or something, or 

don't kno w? 

A. It could be a scapular. 

Q. Scapular. 

A. I'm not quite sure what it i s . 

Q. Okay. And the priest t hat gave Dave 

firs t communion was whom? 

A. Father Burnett . 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC. (312) 641-3605 
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Q. Okay. Alright. And that's the first 

the same priest tpat we're talking about today 

that also gave irst confession. Fair? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Alright. Let's just go up to the top. 

Sorry, let's just zoom into the top picture, if 

that' s okay. 

A. Sorry. 

Q. And the top picture is, it l ooks l ike we 

got a first communion cake. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Alright. 

A. First communion party. 

Q. So that's not first confession. These 

two pictures are first communion. 

A. Right. 

Q. Alright. The first confession would've 

taken place t hat same year but earlier. Is that 

fair? 

A. Correct. And we don' t have pictures of 

that. 

Q. Alright. Could you tell me what the 

custom and practice that you had in helping 111111 
in particular, and if there was any 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC. (312) 641-3605 
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2 religi ous education, in helping to study a nd 

3 nurture t hem in CCD class? 

4 A. Oka y . Usually I would go over, you 

5 know, their homework or -- They did get some 

6 homework and we'd go over the reading material 

7 and, y ou know, I ' d ask them questions 1 give them 

8 l ittle quizzes. It was important to me that they 

9 l earned their prayers and that was part of our job 

10 to teach them their prayers. 

II Q. Sure. And that was a custom and 

12 pract ice t hat you had in hel ping llllll as wel l as 

13 - --
14 A. Yes . 

15 Q. -- with the religious homework at CCD. 

16 A . Yes. 

17 Q. Alright . And d id you have a cu s t om and 

18 practice in driving, whether yours e l f, your 

19 husband, or in a car poo l to school? 

20 A. We we re in a car pool. 

21 Q. Right. 

22 A. Car pool. CCD was somet imes dif ferent 

23 days and diffe r ent t i mes, depending on how old the 

24 chi ldr en were, so --

VIDEO INSTANTER, I NC. (312) 641-3605 
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Q. Okay. 

2 A. -- they we re in car pool. 

3 Q. And, from time - to-time, you drove --

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. --- for example, to CCD class, and 

6 that was at the grade school at St. Mary's in 

7 Mokena? 

8 . A. Yes. 

9 Q. Alright. And that's when- - Was Father 

10 Burnett the pastor all those times when he was 

11 going to CCD? 

12 A. Yes . 

13 Q. As far as you knew, was he the only 

14 priest at St. Mary's at the time? 

15 A. No, I believe there was another priest. 

16 Q. The f irst communion that your 

17 had, who was your understanding as to who gave him 

18 first communion and first confession? 

19 A. Father Burnett. 

20 Q. Okay. When -- Could you describe the 

21 custom and practice you had in dropping 

22 IIIII off to CCD class and then picking him in. 

( 23 Did you actual ly go into the school room? 

24 A. Sometimes 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC. (312) 641-3605 



FR. BURNE T SCAN FROM THE DIOCESE OF JOLIET N0 .2 1239 
'• 

Redacted April 2014 

~JA 
leased April 2014 1 Q. How did that work? 

2 A. Well, sometimes I would actually go into 

3 the school room and drop them off at their at 

4 their room. There were different rooms for the 

5 differe nt kids. 

6 Q. Sure . 

7 A. Some times I would do that and other 

8 t i mes I would just walk them to the door and they 

9 would go in. 

10 Q. Okay. And how about releasi ng the 
-· 

11 children after CCD class was over? Did you have 

12 to go to pick them up? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q . Okay. Had to go into the room?. 

15 A. Go to the door of the room. 

16 Q. Door . Okay. There was a t i me when 111111 
17 wa s prep aring for his first confession in second 

18 grade at St. Mary's Mokena. Did you have an 

19 occasion to see the room where the first 

20 confession was going to take place? 

21 A. Yes . It was - - From what I remember, i t 

22 was a rather large room. It -- I think it was 

23 used as a hall for different functions and it had 

24 - - I know it had -- I only recall one door b u t I'm 
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p retty s ure it h ad two, but none of the doors had 

windows i n the m. 

Q. Okay. So when y ou went in that room, 

your recollection was that there were no visible 

windows that you could see. 

A. Correct. 

Q. Alright. I think St . Mary's has 

undergon e a r enovation o r two sinc e t hat time. I 

a sked yo u before whether or not you thought that 

r oom survived. Do you know if t hat room whe r e the 

confession took place s urvives or not ? 

A. I don't think so. I think it became 

part of a bigger room that is now called Father 

called Burnett Hall. 

Q. Okay. And was the room where the first 

confession that~ook place in, was that in a 

close proximity to t h e church? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Alright. Did you notice anything 

unusual in the first confession that your oldest 

son, had at a l l? Anything u nu s ual? 

A. No. 

Q. Alright. You didn ' t notice anything 

unusual about Father Burnett at or about this 
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time? 

A. No. The only - - There was one t hing 

that I thought was unusual . When I went to 

confession, we always went in the confess ional. 

Q. Right . 

A. They were having these children go in a 

room with a priest looking face-to-face with the 

light on. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I had never heard of that before. 

Q. I did it the old way, too. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Okay . But as you prepared your son, 

111111 for firs t confession, did you have some 

indication or knowledge t h at it was going to be 

this face-to-face 

A. Yes. 

Q. -- with a pri e st? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Alright. Okay. I'd like t o take you to 

A. Okay . 

Q. -- in second grade. Okay? 

A. Hmm. 
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Q. He looked at or about what we saw him in 

the picture. Fair? 

A. Right. 

Q. Alright. And what color eyes does you 

son have? 

A. Right. 

Q. He was fair complected? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. What, if anything, did you notice 

about that day in getting ready 

for first confession? 

A. He seemed nervous. He just -- You know, 

he didn't want to eat breakfast in the mor ning. 

He just seemed nervous, and I said, you know, 

20 - it' s nothing to be nervous about. You know, 

21 you're making your first confession. This is 

22 really important, you know , step in your life. I 

23 said , you know, don't worry, don't be nervous . I 

24 sai d Father will be there with you and Father 
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takes the place of God in the confessional, so do 

whatever he says. 

Q. Okay. Is that something you have a 

specific recollection of telling~hat 

morning? 

A. Yes . 

Q. Alright. Is this concept or notion that 

the priest in the confessional takes the place of 

God; is that something that you learned in your 

Catholic upbringing? 

A. Yes, it is. 

Q. Alright. And, in your Catholic 

upbringing, whether i t be the sisters or priests, 

that you also were taught to do what they said . 

A. Yes. 

Q. Alright. And so the gist of what I 

believe you said was that he ~,o;as nervous, as 

probably many kids are getting r e ady for a 

sacrament, and you told you tried to calm 111111 
dow.n"by saying things wil l alright, 

just do whatever Father says to do; he takes the 

place of God in the confessional. Is t hat true? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Alright. And a scale o f 1 to 10, 10 
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being I'm sure that,' s exactly what I told him and 

1 being I'm not sure that might be what I told him 

A. I know that's exactly what I told him. 

Q. Okay. On a scale of 1 to 10, how sure 

are you that's what you said? 

A. Ten. 

Q. Alright. As best you recall, did you or 

your husband or somebody else drive your son to 

first confession that day? 

A. I bel ieve my husband did. 

Q. Okay. And I'll ask you why you remember 

that i n a little bit, but later that day, after 

the first confession, did you have any visitors 

over to the house? 

A. Yes, I had my in- laws over. 

Q. Okay. And that's the 

A. Yes. 

Q. Alright. And they are active and 

practicing Catholics then and now? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Alright. Any other people, as far as 

you know? Your parents weren't over? 

A. No, they weren't. 
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2 remember - - If you d o , you do . If you don,t 1 you 

3 don't. Do you reme mber what day of t he week the 

4 first confession was? 

5 A. I'm a lmos t positive i t was on a Saturda y 

6 

7 Q. Okay. 

8 A. - - but I could be wrong. 

9 Q. Not sure . We could look the date up - -

10 A. Okay . 

11 Q . - - a nd l ook u p i t out on t h e calendar. 

( . 12 When is the first time you saw 

13 a f ter h is fi r st confessio n? Could y ou tell me 

14 where and could you describe what he said to you 

15 and what you said t o him? 

16 A. Sure. I heard him c ome in t he house . I 

17 wa s upstairs . 

18 Q. Wha t type o f a house do you have, by t h e 

19 way? 

20 A. We have a tri- l evel. There were like 

21 five steps up and five steps down to the basement . 

22 I was upstairs . 

. . 
\, 23 Q. And what 1 S upsta irs ? 

24 A. The bedro oms and the bathroom. 
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Q, 

A, 

Okay, Alright, 

And he came running up and I was, you 

know, excited, Tell me about your first 

confession, how was it, how do you feel, what 

happened, and he 

Q, As any normal mom would ask their -­

Right, Yeah, 

29 

A, Yeah. I mean -- And he said, oh, it was 

fine. It was fine. He goes I had to wait in line 

for a while. He says and then I went in, and then 

the I believe he said and then we said a prayer 

and then Father told me to take off my pants. 

Q. Well, let me -- let me stop you right 

there. You said then Father told me to take off 

my pants. Was your understanding at that time 

that he was referring to Father Burnett? 

A. Yes, I thought he was referring to 

Father Burnett. 

Q. Because that's who was scheduled to give 

him his first confession. Alright. I'm going to 

ask you a few -- obviously, some questions after 

this, but on that same scale of 1 to 10, being 1 

I'm not sure if that's exactly what he said or 10 

being I'm certain that's exactly what Dave told 
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2 A. I'm I'm very positive, a 10. 

3 Q. Okay. So, as best you can recall, -
4 said then Father asked me to take off my pants or 

5 take my pants down. Right? 

6 A. And I yelled at him. 

7 Q. What did you say to that? 

8 A. I was liker lllllll donrt say such a 

9 thing. It was - - I mean, it was a horrible thing 

10 to say. I mean, I have and they're --

11 You knowr boys are boys. You know, they used to 

12 laugh and gi.ve each other wedgies and stuff, but 

13 when he said - - You know, I'm like don' t ever talk 

14 that way. Don't talk t hat way. Don't say such a 

15 thing. 

16 Q. Right . So, in essence, it sounded like 

17 you were reprimanding llllllfor 

18 A . Because I thought he was goofing around. 

. 19 Q. Right. Okay. And were your in- laws i n 

20 the house at the time? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. Did you have any concern that he might 

23 take that type of conversation downstairs in front 

24 of your in-laws? 
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2 Q. Alright . Do you remember anything else 

3 llllllsa i d to you at or about that same time 

4 upstairs in the house, same day of the first 

5 c on fess i on? 

6 A. No. 

7 Q. Okay. I assume -- Well, I will a s k you 

8 this. Did you have some r efreshments or some thing 

9 to serve your in-laws? 

10 A. I'm sure we had coffee and coffee cake, 

11 . yeah. 

12 Q. Your recol l ection that it was not 

13 dinner? 

14 A. Oh, no, i t was not dinner. 

15 Q. Okay. And could you tell me what your 

16 custom and p ractice was back in about '81 or '82, 

17 whenllllllwas in second grade, with r espect to 

18 tucking him in bed at night? 

19 A. Okay . Wel l, at that time - -

20 Q. Did you hav e such a custom and practice? 

21 A. Oh, yeah, we did . 

22 Q . Tell me - - Tell me what you would 

23 n o rmal l y do. 

24 A. Okay. It was, you know, taking both 
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2 t eeth good, and then t ucking the m i n , staying in 

3 the room 

4 Q. In the same bedro om or different 

5 bedrooms? 

6 A. No, two different bedr ooms. 

7 Q . Okay. 

8 A. Saying prayers with the m at night. 

9 Q. Okay. 

10 A . And then kissing them goodnight. 

11 Q. Okay. Do you believe you had that same 

.( 12 custom and p rac tice i n tucking 

13 lllllin that night , meaning the night of s 

14 first confession? 

15 A. Yes . 

16 Q. Alright. When - told y ou that Father 

17 Burnett had asked him to take his pants down, did 

18 you believe that that's what Father Burnett had 

19 asked him t o do that day, or did you t hinkllllll 

20 was just bad-mouthing? 

2 1 A. No , I didn't believe it at a ll. I 

22 thought h e was joking around . 

( 
\.· 23 Q. Okay. Whe n y ou t u cked 

24 into b ed th~t n i ght, did you have any reason to 
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2 during the first confession? 

3 A. No . 

4 Q. Would you have done the same routine in 

5 tucking him in as you did normally? 

6 A. Yes. 

7 Q. Alright. And you've described for us 

8 that was. Right? Do you have any specific and 

9 detailed r ecollection o f exactly what you said to 

10 - and 1,o1hat he said to you 1,o1hen you tucked him 

11 in, or is it just a general recollection you 

12 followed your routine? 

13 A. I'm sorry, it's just general. I don 't 

14 recall at this time . 

15 Q. But the specific statement that - - as 

16 you related, that Father Burnett or then he asked 

17 me to t ake my pants down or off, you specifi cally 

18 remember that? 

19 A. I remember that . 

20 Q. There's no doubt in your mind that's 

21 what 

22 A. There's no doubt in my mind. 

23 Q. said? Right. So at the end of the 

24 day, the next day, the next week, t he next month , 
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2 anything wrong had happened in the confessional . 

3 Is that fair? 

4 A. That's fair. 

5 Q. Alright. I would like to jump start 

6 fo·rward a little b it in having you tell me when it 

7 was that you first remembered that conversati on 

8 about what told you about Father Burnett 

9 taking his pants dO\oJn, from - - from '81 or ' 82 and 

10 when it was in second grade, when was the next 

11 time that t hat conversation or thought came into 

12 your mind or memo ry? 

13 A. That thought 

14 Q . And in relati on -- Go ahead. 

15 A. Okay. That thought came into my mind, 

16 well, gosh, approximately a year ago, and I should 

17 -- I don't know if you want to hear this, but how 

18 that it came about was. 

19 Q. Sure. Certainly. 

20 A. Okay. - and had 

21 moved in with us for a couple of months until 

22 their house was ready and s he was talking about, 

23 you know, the kids they were going to have and she 

24 said but we're n o t going to baptize them and we're 
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not going to send them to CCD, and that sounded 

pretty odd to me because they got married in the 

Catholic Church, and I asked her why, and she said 

I thi nk you bette r talk to your son. So that 

night I asked my son. I said, you know, what ' s 

this about, and that's when he told me tha t he was 

abused by Father Burnett. 

Q. Okay . This We're giving this 

aff idavit in the fall of 2006. Do you believe you 

had that conversation with your son in the fall of 

2005? 

A. Five. 

Q. Right. And that was when he and -

right - -

A. Mm- hmm. 

Q. - - were living in your house? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Right? And when you had t he 

conversation withllllll about that topi c and said 

you better tal k to - did you have the 

conversation with- about what's up about not 

g e tting baptized the same day t hat you had a 

conversation wit 

A. Yes . 
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Q. Okay. Because they were both livi ng at 

your house --

A . Ri ght . 

Q . -- at the same time. Alright. And your 

house that you lived in that you're referring to 

is is where? 

A. 

Q. Okay. In relation to that conversation 

that you had with that same night 

you spoke with- in the fall of 2005, could 

you tell me when it was approximately that your 

first remembered this --

A. Conversation. 

Q. conversation that took place on the 

second floor in your house, on the same day of the 

first confession? 

A. It was in the first week. 

Q. So, whenever it was that you remembered -

chatting with lllllabout being abused by Father 

Burnett, in the fall of 2005, within a week or so 

you remembered back to t his conversation. Were 

you trying to think about what was going on back 

then, or how did that recollection come to you? 

A. 
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8 Q. Right. And, having not thought about 

9 that for so many years, do you have any doubt that 

10 that 's exactly what told you back 

11 in second grade? 

12 A. I don't have any doubt about it at all. 

13 

14 Q. Do you believe that that recollection 

15 corroborates llllfs recollection that he was 

16 sexually abused by Father Burnett --

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. -- during his firs t confession? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. This conversation in the fall of 2005 

21 

22 first confessional and your recol lect ion a week or 

( 23 so lat er, is that before you had seen any 

24 information about other allegations agains t Father 
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2 A. Yes. Basically, I hadn't heard anything 

3 about Father Burnett before. I d i dn't know where 

4 he was. My mom and dad are Catholics and t hey 

·s used to live in St. Mary's par ish, and I called 

6 her up and I said, you know, c an you tell me 

7 whatever happened to Father Burnett . 

8 Q. You calle d her up shortly af t er -

9 told you this? 

10 A. Yeah . 

11 Q. Yes. In the fal l of 20 05? 

\. 12 .A. Yes. 

13 Q. Right. 

14· A. And I d i d tell her what~old me. 

15 You know, I p rob abl y shouldn't ha ve but I had to 

16 tell I just had to tell my mom. 

17 Q. Sure. 

18 A. Anyway, she told me -- Well , she heard 

19 Father Burnett was dead, and I thought to mysel f, 

20 oh, thank God . I went home and tol d -

21 Q. Well, why did you say thank God ? 

22 A. Because he can,t hurt anybody else . 

23 Q . Okay . 

24 A . And IIIII was struggl ing wi th what to 
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do. Should he -- Should he say something or 

should he not say something 

Q. Right. 

A. -- and at that point I said, well, 

if he's still with kids, you have to say 

something; you don't have a choice. 

Q. Right. 

A. But now that I heard he was dead I 

called -- or told -I said, you know what, you 

don't have to do anything. 

Q. Right. 

A. Father's dead. 

Q. Right. And then did you have a later 

conversation with your mom, and tell me a little 

bit about that. 

mom called me in the morning and she said I'm so 

sorry, and I said what are you sorry about, and 

she goes didn't you watch TV last night, and I 

said no. She goes you didn't see the paper? I 

said no. Then she said Father Burnett's not dead, 

and I said what do you mean? She goes there's a 
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boy on there say i ng he was abused by Father 

Burnett. 

Q. And I believe you have seen newspaper 

report s after t hat p oint in time about the claim 

o f 

A. Yes . 

Q. -- who alle ged he was abused -- sexually 

abused b y Father Burn ett, at l eas t accordi ng to 

the paper , included being abused at an early age 

o f under 10, which included being abused in the 

confessional. Is that - - I s that fai r ? 

A. I didn't know he was abused in the 

confessional . I know that h e said he was abused 

by Father Burnett . 

Q. Okay. Fair enough . I t ook a look at 

t he newspaper articles, and the firs t time I saw a 

newspaper a rticle about the Burnett -- I 'm sorry, 

about the~atter was in the early months , 

February, I believe, of 2006. Is t hat about the 

time frame that you r emember seeing this? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And, according to newspaper r eports a nd 

a statement quoting a statement from t he 

Archdiocese of Joliet, the first time that this 
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was even reported to the archdiocese about the 

boy being abused was approximately 

December of 20 05. You with me so far? 

A. Okay. 

Q. Shortly before February of 20 06. My 

question is did your conversation with llllland 

your recollection a week or so later, that all 

took place before December of 2005. Is that fair? 

A. Definitely. Definitely. 

Q. Alright. So neither you nor - to 

11 your kno wledge -- You did n ot know anything about 

12 any complaints against Father Bu rnett when you 

13 recalled this , and to the best of your knowledge, 

14 llllldidn' t have any such recollection. 

15 . A. No. 

16 Q. Alright. 

17 A. And then I had to call him up and tell 

18 him that the Father wasn't dead. I guess another 

19 prie st had died from the parish. 

20 Q. Okay. I may have one or two questions. 

21 I'd like to just t ake a short littl e break, and I 

22 may come back. Okay. 

23 (WHEREUPON, a s hort 

24 recess was taken.) 
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1 THE REPORTER: Back on the record. The 

2 time is 3:06 p . m. 

3 BY MR. JOHNSON: 

4 Q . Just a coup l e of ~allow-up questions. I 

5 just forgot a few matters. Have you had any 

6 

7 bringing this issue up to her parents, and if you 

8 did, the issue of - s abuse. 

9 A. Yes. 

10 Q. And tell me what was the nature of those 

11 conversations. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 Q. If she knew that 

21 A. He was abused . 

22 Q. - - he had been abused. From what you 

~. 23 have observed these days in 2006 and what you know 

. 24 now in relation to what some of s life story 
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2 affected and damaged by this abuse? 

3 A. I definitely believe so. 

4 Q. Okay . I'd like to have you focus in a 

5 little bit on s freshman and sophomore year 

6 of college. Okay? 

7 A. Okay. 

8 Q. He was a good student in high school? 

9 A. He was -- He was above average student 

10 in high school. 

11 Q. And then he graduated from 

12 

13 A. 

14 Q. -- High School, I believe. 

15 A. Right. 

16 Q. And I believe that was about-

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. And then he went where to college? 

19 A. He went to 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 
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1 Q. Have you seen in reports of either 

2 Father Burnett or Bishop Imesch in recent months 

3 as to whether or not anybody has been taking 

4 responsibility for sexual abuse of minors by 

5 priests in the Archdiocese of Joliet? 

6 A. I -- There was an incident -- Gosh, I'm 

7 not quite sure -- It was in springtime where there 

8 was a letter written by Father Burnett to the 

9 parish of St. Mary's stating that it was all a lie 

10 and he didn't do anything, and Bishop Imesch, I 

11 actually felt sorry for him because he had all 

12 these priests that were, you know, accused and 

13 some convicted of abusing children, and had·one of 

14 the last days before he retired he was on TV and 

15 they interviewed him, and at the end the reporter 

16 said, well, Father -- Father, what do you think 

17 about all those pedophiles, and he turned around 

18 and he said we didn't have any pedophiles in my 

19 archdiocese. We didn't have any pedophiles. 

20 Pedophiles mean they were prepubescent, and all 

21 these kids were 13 or older -- all the accusers. 

22 I mean, does it make a difference if you're 12 or 

( 
23 . 

\, if you're 13? You're still abused . 

24 Q. The reports of, in the popular press, of 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC. (312) 641-3605 
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2 February of 2006 that he was abused as early as 8 

3 years of age. Did you remember -- I'd like you to 

4 assume that. Would that suggest that --

5 A. He knew . 

6 Q. there was a claim of - -

7 A. Oh, I know Bishop Imesch had to have 

8 

9 or he's senile. There's something wrong with the 

10 man. 

11 Q. Right. Well, my question is did - - did 

12 you have some concern or anger about statements 

13 made by Bishop Imesch that seems to -- that seem 

14 to understate claims of pedophilia in the 

15 Archdiocese of Joliet. 

16 A. Yes. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

( . 

'- 23 

24 Q. If called to a deposition or a trial, 

VIDEO I NSTANTER , INC. (3 12) 641-3605 
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2 you did today? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. I don't have any other further 

5 questions, so this will be the end of this 

6 affidavit of 

7 THE REPORTER: The time is 3:14p.m. 

8 The running time of t his videotape is 49 minutes 

9 and 18 seconds . Going back on the record. The 

10 time is 3:31 p.m . 

11 BY MR. JOHNSON: 

12 Q . You Jmo1t1, when atto rneys sometimes say 

13 they don 1 t have anymore quest ions, sometimes we're 

14 mistaken. So, in reviewing my notes/ I forgot to 

15 ask you a couple of quest ions. So could I ask 

16 you, as many t i mes at depositions when this 

17 happen s., would you a s sume that you are under the 

18 same oath --

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. the same swearing-in? So this is a 

21 continuat ion of your videotaped affidavit. Is 

22 t hat fair? 

( 23 A. Yes. 

24 Q. And it's t he two oaths that you agreed 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC. (312) 641- 3605 
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13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

to answers questions of. Fair enough? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Alright. I asked you some questions 

I had an opportunity to read a 

report that Joseph Cardinal Bernardin of the 

Archdiocese of Chicago, dated JWle of 1992, 

entitled The Cardinal's Commission on Clerical 

Sexual Misconduct With Minors, and it's a rather 

comprehensive 50-some page text, but I want to 

quote you from there and ask you if you believe 

this has any relation tolllllll They're talking 

about impact on victims and specifically "sexual 

misconduct by a priest with a minor." It says in 

addition to being a violation of celibacy and 

chastity, almost always has serious harm or 

harmful effects on the victims, whether the matter 

becomes publicly known or not . They suffer a loss 

of self-esteem. They often find it difficult to 

trust an adult again. They may feel guilty. They 

may keep the matter hidden or repress it, 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC. (312) 641- 3605 
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2 priesthood, even God. 

3 It goes on, page 10, victims' capacity 

4 to develop a trusting relationship with o ther 

. s· clergy is impeded and may begin to lose faith in 

6 the sacraments of the Eucharist, capital E, and 

7 Penance, capital P, because they are administered 

8 by priests. If diocesan leaders do not respond 

9 effectively to victims' reports of sexual abuse by 

10 clergy, the victims often become further alienated 

11 from the church . They may ask themselves why God 

12 is allowing all this to happen to them. Often 

13 they cease being an active member of the church. 

14 A tragic loss for the community of faith. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 
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24 Q. And you've answered my quest 
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to the best of your ability considering the 

seriousness of the issue at hand, the alleged 

abuse of a minor by a Catholic Priest, and 

consistent with the two oaths that we talked 

about. Fair enough? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Alright. And, if called, you could 

56 

competently testify to these additional facts and 

questions that I asked of you. Fair enough? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes. 

Alright. I believe these are all the 

questions that I have. So I'm sure we will not 

return, so unless asked at a later date. Thank 

you so much for coming today. 

A. Thank you. 

THE REPORTER: This is the end of the 

affidavit. The time is 3:41p.m. The running 

time of this videotape is 59 minutes and 54 

seconds. 

VIDEO INSTANTER, INC. (312) 641-3605 
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STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 

) 

) 
SS: 

COUNTY OF C 0 0 K 

I, PAUL DAVID GILLERAN, a Notary Public within and 

for the County of Cook and State of Illinois, do hereby certify 

that the affiant, was by me first duly sworn to 

testify the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth in the 

cause aforesaid; ~hat the affidavit of the said PATRICIA RUDOFSKI 

was taken before me at 455 East Illinois Street, Chicago, Illinois, 

commencing at the hour of 2:25p.m. on the 4th day of October, A.D. 

2006, and was concluded at the hour of 3:41 p.m. on that date. 

I further certify that the testimony given at said 

affidavit by said affiant was recorded by an audio/visual recording 

device, by me in the presence of said affiant and thereafter 

transcribed into typewriting under my direction and control. 

I further certify that the foregoing tr.anscript of 

said videotaped affidavit is a true, complete and correct report of 

the entire testimony so given by sa·id affiant, together with such 

other matters and things as counsel for the parties present at the 

taking of said affidavit desire to have appear of record. 

I further certify that I am not counsel for, nor 

attorney for any of the parties to the aforesaid cause, nor am I 
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related to any of the parties to the aforesaid cause, nor am I 

interested in any manner in the said cause or in its outcome. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and 

affix my seal of office, at Chicago, Illinois this lOth day of 

October, A.D. 2006. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

My commission expires: 
/ September 15, 2009. 

1. J 
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To: 

From: 

Date: 

Review Committee 

James C. Byrne 

December 28, 2006 

MEMORANDUM 

Re: 
vs 
Father James Burnett 

Interview o 

. The following is a Swnmary of an interview of an individual identified only as a friend of 
-whose occupation is~his individual's identity is not known at this time. 

· ;· The-is a peer o~ho attended a public grade school. However, he was 
., __ an altar boy at St. Mary's in Mokena and Father Burnett had on occasion been a guest for dinner at 

his parent's home when he was in grade school. His family also visited Father when Father was 
stationed at St. Peter and Paul. 

The need for the interview was due to a second hand reported conversation in which .. 
. -allegedly ~ade a statemen~ about Father Burnett that could have implied possible adverse 
knowledge regarding Father. The contracto~ reportedly stated "that he would not be surprised if 
Father Burnett would be the next priest to be accused of sexual abuse of a minor. " · 

recently interviewed, by personnel from Attorney Jolmson's office who 

1aer.1tea making the above statement. He recalls that h~ 
:when talking to -he-mentioned s name m 

so gave an opinion "that Father w~ossibly may have used the·word 
"queer''. He also said that he does not know of any negative information regardi~g Father Burnett. 

JCB/slan 

.... ... 

1 

. ' 
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vs 
Father Burnett 

l Additional Information I 

Pursuant to various discussions and request the following infom1ation is being provided: 

1.) Background cbeck of 

2.) 

There has been a background 
no civil no criminal 

There was 
revealed ho infonnation. 

Interview of-s college roommate. 
-See attached 

3.) Interview of-s wife-
-See attached 

4.) Interview of-s Father. 
-See attached 

---- - - - - - -----···· .. ·· · ...... ·-·-····---------
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I RESPONSE OF FATHER BURNETT I 

Prepared 

By 

Patrick Reardon 
(Civil Attorney for Father) 
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RESPONSE OF REVEREND JAMES R. BURNETI 
TO Y •- • • I .:: : 

Preliminary remarks 

FAG: Bl/ElG 

NO. 1285 

Father Burn.ett has viewed recorded interviews and ofbis 
mother,.- and viewed·the photos exlnbited therein. no 
recollec~ther of these persons during the time of his parish ullnistry. Father 
was involved in the administration of sacraments during the relevant time period. 
For that reason he is well acquainted with the format and method of the sacrament 
of reconciliation or :first confessions prior to first communion. 

Description of Sacrament of Reco».ciliation 

The accusation against Father Burnett involves a single instance of sexual 
.misconduct alleged to have occurred d~ s fJISt confession while he 
was a child. 

s account of the format of this first reconciliation service is 
wrong; not accurately portray how this service was conducted. This 
reconciliation was carried out as a family-inclusive celebration. This service was 
directed by the Director ofReligious Education. It involved as many as 100 
chi1dren from several classes and the CCD progr:am, along with all of their parents. 
At least one parent was required to be with the child. Father Burnett began each 
service in the parish church as parents sat with their children. This portion of the 
service resembled closely the liturgy of the word portion of the Mass. After 
Father's homily, he went U:mnediateiy to the reconciliation room, a short distance 
dov.rn a hall from the church entrance doors. Parents and children lined up in the 
corridor. Each child had a few moments in the room for private confession while 
his or her parents waited dkectly at the dom- in the presence of the bRE and 
teachers to receive the child and return to the church to continue the seivice. 

The wall of this reconciliation room was glass block on either side of the 
doorway. While offering a degree of private communication, this glass block wall 
offered a view of fon:ns through it. Time was of the essence. Father Burnett had to 
move as rapidly as possible through the children's private confessions so that the 
remainder of the service could be commenced before the delay became too tedious 
for those waiting in the church. 
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Discrepancies in the recorded statements 

PAGE 02/06 

NO. 1286 

s statement in her recorded inteiView that she asked her son 
about after he got home seems at variance with the fact that she 
would have had to be with him during the actual event. If she had not been there, 
then-s father would have. Based upon the proximity of the parents, Director 
of Religious Education or teacher, to the door and glass wall of the private 
confession room, it is beyond credibility that they would not have known 
immediately of any improper action. It is also beyond credibility that any person 
would attempt some improper conduct in such a context. 

The other major conflict in s recorded statement is that she 
reports & statement ftoxn h~r son had him. take his pants down dwing this 
confessional moment. However her so.n, the accuser~ do~s not acknowledge ever 
making such a statement to her. Moreover, he does not currently say that this 
~ed. s version is that Father~s hand was m1der his bottom as 
-sat on.Father' s -lap. Father absolutely denies any such contact and point$ out 
that any such behavior would have been easily noticed at the time, even through the 
glags block wall~. 

Col.l.clnsioJ;J. 

Father Burnett has attempted to live up to his calling as an ordained Catholic 
priest of the Diocese of Joliet. He is disappointed and discouraged that anyone 
would acol1:3e him of wrongdoing. He has cooperated with the diocesan process and 
the concomitant loss of his good name. He does not wish tills cooperation to be 
se~n as any form of agreement that the accusation is true. Indeed it is utterly and 
odiously false. Father will attempt to be true to his calling and fo.(give those who 
have falsely accused him. But he does not wish this forgiveness of the accuser to be 
misinterpreted as any admission that the acCW~ation is 1rue. 
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Father Burnett has viewed the recorded statements of and of 
-smother, Mrs. -e is aware of the accusation contained 
there:in. Father Burnett unconditionally denies the accusation. Furthermore, as is 
every priest, Father is aware of the canonical strictures against the abuse of a 
sacrament and states that he never violated those laws. Father has patiently abided 
by the process of the mvestigation out of a realization that the protection of children 
is paramoun~. However he respectfully submits that he has a right to his own good 
name. He asks that the false allegations against rum be dismissed as such. 

Date: Januazy 8. 2007 
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SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT 

ALLEGATIONS OF 

OUR FILE NO. GI-036-05 

I N T E R V I E W 

0 F 

FR. JAMES BURNETT 

ON 
JAN lOth 200nr--.:..." 

FRIDAY, JANUARY 13,2006 

This repor\ hilS been exclusively prepared by Edward R. Kirby & Associates, Inc. for the confidential use of the client only. If prepered under the direction 
of an allomey, it was done so in anticipation of litigation. This report is confidential and privileged communication. The information contained within 
is provided in good faith and has been gathered by sources deemed reliable. However, no guarantee or other represeniPtion is made to its accuracy 
or its suitability for ony particular purpose. Neither Edward R. Ki rby & Associates Inc. nor its employees and agents sholl be held responsible for any 
in~ccuracies in public record Information or ony other information as it has been presented herein. By acceptance of this report, the client accepts full 
responsibility for any use or disclosure of th is report or its contents. 
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c Interview of Father James Burnett 

On Tuesday, January 10, 2006, Investigator Steven L. Kirby met with and interviewed 
Father James Burnett at St. Raymond's Rectory in Joliet, Illin~is. The u ose of the 
interview was to discuss with Father Burnett the allegations of d for 
Father Burnett to respond to those allegations. During the course o an approximate 
forty-minute interview, Father Burnett stated the following in sununary: 

• He denied ever sexually touching 
the course of his ministry. This .. ..., ....... 
Mary's in Mokena or any of his other assignments. 

or any other minor during 
the time he was at St. 

• Father Burnett denied ever inappropriately touching or sexually engaging in any 
type of sexual activity with any minors during the course of his ministry, while 
at St. Mary's Church or any other time. 

• He denied ever being accused of any sexual misconduct during the course of his 
priesthood. 

• Father Burnett stated he was ordained in 1968 and has had the following four 
assignments: St. Charles Boromeo, Bensenville, Illinois, 1968-1974; St. Mary's 
Parish, Mokena, Illinois, 1974-1990; St. Peter and Paul Parish, Naperville, Illinois, 
1990-2002; St. Raymond's Parish, Joliet, Illinois, 2002-present. 

2 
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NO. 1331 
000027 

• He stated that he first became aware of the abuse allegations b~ 
when he was contacted by a reporter, who happens to be a parishioner of St. 
Raymond's, sometime in mid December. He stated that he immediately told 
Bishop Imish about the reporter's statements. He stated that he subsequently 
learned on Christmas Eve that the situation had escalated and would be looked 
at by the Review Committee. 

• Father Burnett stated it 
that he 

C. • 

understanding that the allegation was essentially 
T<>nnrnr<> his pants while in a confessional area. 

The investigator explained to Father Burnett that - s allegations 
were that on several occasions, when~as betw~eight and ten, 
he was fondled both on his bare genital area and through his clothing by Father 
Burnett in a "confessional type room across from a bathroom, down a hallway, 
past Sister Mary James' room." 

. ( 

• He specifically denied ever molesting or sexually touching 
Father Burnett stated he was familiar with that room but denied that he heard 
confessions in that room, particularly during school confessions. Father Burnett 
explained that all of the school confessions were heard in the traditional 
confessional in the back of the church. Father Burnett stated he may have, on a 
rare occasion, heard a face-to-face confession in that room but stated that it was 
not used for confession on even a semi-regular basis. 

• Father- Burnett was also advised that while he was 
putting on altar server robes, he was fondled by Father Burnett. 

• He stated that concerning the altar robes, he did not even think that -
~as an altar boy but specifically denied ever molesting him or 
touching him whil~y have been putting on his altar server robes . 

3 
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• He denied knowing that 
St. Mary's. 

allegedly molested by a member of 

• He further denied knov~ing of any other priests at St. Mary's or anywhere else 
who were engaging in sexual misconduct during the times that it was allegedly 
happening . 

• 

reaues:tea that Father Burnett keep him in his prayers. Father Burnett 
stated it was obvious that the letter was heartfelt and that in the letter, Mr. 
-expressed concern for his own safety. Father Burnett denied that there 

was anything in the letter that even remotely suggested that-was 
complaining of sexual misconduct. 

C. • Father Burnett denied ever T..,..,,..,v, 
-or any messages that 
that the only contact he had w 
-was overseas . 

voicemails or messages to call ­
~ing to contact him. He stated 

the letter he received when 

• 

• He agreed to submit to a polygraph examination to investigate the truthfulness 
of his denials. · 

On Thursday, January 12, 2006, Investigator Steven L. Kirby arranged for Father Burnett 
to submit to a polygraph examination to be conducted at the office of F.L. Hunter & 
Associates, 930 North York, Hinsdale, Illinois. After discussing the matter with 
Attorney Jim Byrne and Polygraph Examiner Hunter, the following four relevant 
questions were agreed upon: 

1. Did you ever touc~s bear penis? 

2. Did you ever fondle bare genitals? 

3. Did you ever touch s genitals through his clothing? 

4 
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4. In the 1990's, were you made aware of any attempts by 
contact you by phone? 

The examination is scheduled for Thursday, January 19,2006 at 1:00PM. 

~~ January 10, 2006, Investigator~ted to contact ­
-The investigator left a message for -to contact him but to date 
a return call has not yet received. 

This Investigation Is Continuing With Supplemental Reports To Follow. 

C. 

( 

' 

5 
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930 N. YORK ROAD HINSDALE, ILLINOIS 6052 1 (630) 920-0571 Fax (630) 920-0587 

Mr. James C. Byrne 
Attorney at Law 
815 N. Larkin 
Joliet~ IL. 
60434 

FRED L. HUNTER 
DIRECTOR 

February 02, 2006 

On January 19, 2006, Rev. James R. Burnett voluntarily submitted himself to a polygraph 
examination in this laboratory. The purpose of was to investigate his 
involvement in the alleged sexual touching of s genitals in the 1970's 
while at St. Mary~ s Parish in Mokena, Illinois. 

Prior to his exam, he signed an agreement to take the polygraph examination and to allow 
the results and any relevant statements to be reported to Attorney James Byrne, the Joliet 
Archdiocese, and Investigator Steve Kirby. He also released all parties involved from 
any liability as it may relate to the provisions of this agreement. All executed agreement 
and health forms are incorporated as part of our file in this case . 

PRETEST INTERVIEW 

He indicated that he knew of a number of-families belonging to the St. ~ 
Parish in Mokena when he was there. However, he was never really friendly wi~ 

- s family. He denied that he had ever been at their home for any type of social 
event. 

He stated that he did not recall tha~ ever an alter boy. H~wever if he 
did this would have been when he was in the 6 grade (12 or 13 years old). 

He indicated that his parish in Naperville upgTaded their phones in the late 1990's (98) so 
that it had voicemail ability. He said that wbe~ote him, he did receive 
the letter in Naperville and he would have repli~tionary. 



FR. BURNETT SCAN FROM THE DIOCESE OF JOLIET NO. 1336 

Redacted April 2014 
TMJA 
Released April2014 

Page2 
Mr. James C. Byrne 
Attorney at Law 
Rev. James R. Burnett 

Test Results 

The following listed questions were asked of this subject during the polygraph exam. 

000031 

1. Did you ever touch s genitals through his clothing? Answer (NO) 

2. Did you ever touch bare penis? Answer (NO) 

3. Did you ever sexually s bare genitals? Answer (NO) 

4. In the 1990' s, were you ever made aware of any attempts by 
contact you by telephone? Answer (NO) 

. ( 
There was a void of any significant physiological responses throughout his 
polygraph records on the above listed relevant questions • 

. ( 

His polygraph records were also void of any significant physiological responses 
to the comparison and truthful questions utilized during his exam. 

There was a consistent series of deeper breathes or sigh anomalies throughout 
his polygraph records on all test segments that did distort his respiration 
pattern. 

DISCUSSION 

Due to the lack of valid physiological responses, it was suggested by this 
laboratory that Rev. James R Burnett should be re-examined on a later date. 
On February 02, 2006, he returned to this laboratory for this suggested re-exam. 
Be was encouraged to try and refrain from the deeper breathes or sighs during 
this exam. 

It should be noted that this date his responses were identical to his previous 
evaluation from January 19, 2006. His records also continued to show the deeper 
breathes or sighing type responses on a consistent basis. 

Based on the entire Polygraph evaluation of both dates, no valid opinion as to 
either truth or deception could be rendered to any of the relevant questions 
under investigation. 
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The regularly placed deeper breathes or sighs during the exams seem to be 
anomalies more consistent with nervousness than any intentional countermeasure 
by which to cause distortions of his physiological data. However, all said and done, 
these anomalies arc still suspect. · 

Absent of a valid polygraph evaluation> it is suggested that further conventional 
type investigation be done to try and substantiate the credibility of allegations made 
by parties in this investigation~ther or not Rev. James R. Burnett 
did or did not visit socially th~home as indicated by witnesses to 
this allegationJ as well as any other opposite points of contention. 

Respectfully submitted, 

5M/MA--
Fred L. Hunter 
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Fr. James Burnett 
(Ordained 6-25-68) 

to 2-15-74 Associate St. Charles Borromeo, 
Bensenville 

to 7-14-~ Associate St. Mary Parish, Mokena 

to 6-20-90 Pastor St. Mary Parish, Mokena 

to 6-19-02 Pastor St. Peter & Paul, Naperville 

to Present Pastor St. Raymond Cathedral, 
Joliet 

Fr. Burnett's Priest File 

Fr. Burnett's priest file was reviewed and there are no 
allegations of any type of misconduct. 
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ed that since this matter has been published in the newspapers he has 
w ith five or six former classmates and all but one have expressed strong 

opinions ~lestation never occurred . He stated only one of his former 
classmates,__._ stated that he is "on tlte sidelines" because he is just not sure. 

c 
that it is his opinion, as well as those of the people he spoke with, that 

~ly was not the opportunity for Father Burnett to have molested -
~etween forty and one hundred occasions as alleged. He stated that there 
was little extra cunicular activities at the school and that most children left the school 

{ 
· \ 

on the school bus and leave. He stated that he never knew 
to hang around the school. Furthermore, he does 

not called out of class by Father Burnett· to serve mass 
or for any other reason. He did acknowledge, however, an altar boy. Mr. 
- stated that at least one of his was a classmate and 
~ed from St. in also that seldom picked as a 
funeral mass server. was that if Father Burnett had targeted 
.,ne would taken him out of class, which did not occur. 

- stated he was unaware of any socialization by Father Burnett witnllls 
~ather Burnett ever attended family gatherings at the ~ousehold. 

Regarding confessions, - recalled that confessions for the entire school were 
only held two or three times a year and that for the most part those confessions were an 
"assembly line" in that the children would line up outside the office witlt the glass block 
walls and go in and out within a minute or two. He described the room as having a 
chau with a screen where someone could confess, at least, semi-anonymously and 
chairs that were face to face. He stressed that there were teachers present outside the 
room in order to keep the students orderly and that the confessions were very short 
duration. 
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He stated that he knew Father Burnett as a decent individual and did not believe that he 
would engage in any inappropriate activity. - provided a letter (copy 
attached) he sent to several newspapers in w~, "Father Burnett was a 
caring, influential priest who help grow St. Mary's Church into the great parish it is 
now." He also stated in a letter, "During my eight years at St. Mary's, I never saw any 
indication of, nor did I ever feel that there was any inappropriate behavior going on 
between Father Burnett and any of the other students." He also stated that Father 
Burnett was aciil!!all much closer to his brother,~ho graduated a few 
years ahead of He stated that he discussed the allegations with his 
brother, -an · ro er assured him that at no time did Father Burnett ever make 
any inappropriate advances towards-

C. 
1<>o.Q...... that if he could be of further assistance, the investigator should 

stated that he would cooperate fully in the future. 

This Investigation Is Continuing With Supplemental Reports To Follow. 

2 
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On February 20, 2006, Investigator Steven L. Kirby ··r lrPTmP·w 

the telephone concerning the above captioned matter. 
Bishop Imesch with a copy going to Sister Judith Davies on 

NO. 1379 

000064' 

he expressed his opinion that the allegations relating to Father Burnett were not true. 
He stated that he would be willing to discuss the letter with a representative of the 
diocese. 
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On Tuesday, March 7, 2006, Investigator Steven L. Kirby interviewed Father Vytas 
Memenas, who is curren St. Anthony Parish, 100 North Scott, Joliet, 
illinois 60432, telephone Father Memenas was Pastor of St. Mary's 
Parish in Mokena from 1972 to 1978. Father Burnett was an associate at St. Mary's from 
1974 to 1978 (before being designated Pastor) and lived and worked with Father 
Memenas during those four years. 

Father Memenas stated that he did not have any firsthand information one way or the 
other that would directly add!ess the allegations of -but emphatically 
stated that he did not believe the allegations. When a~ed that he always 
knew Father Burnett to be respectful in how he treated people and never knew him to 
engage in any type of inappropriate behavior or even suspicious behavior with juveniles 
during the four years that he worked with him. He stated that from what he knew of 
Father Burnett's character he did not believe him to be the kind of priest that would 
abuse anyone. H e described Father Burnett as somewhat of a "loner" who did not 
socialize or go to parishioner's homes often. 

Fatlter Memenas pointed out that when h e was requested by Bishop Kucera to go to St. 
Patrick, he told the Bishop that one of the conditions for him accepting the transfer 
would be for Father Burnett to be made Pastor of St. Mary's. He stated that he would 
not h~Ve made this recommendation had h e not had the utmost confidence in Father·· ·· 
Burnett. He also pointed out that at the time Father Burnett was only ten years 
ordained. 

Father Memenas stated he has also learned that a number of former classmates of­
have stepped forward ~ublicly supported Father Burnett, including 

members of the-family. 

Father Memenas stated that he also knew of St. Mary's Parish. 
Father Memenas stated that ·he also who would have been six 
to eight years old when Father Memenas s and was reassigned to St. 
liiiiliarish in Joliet. He did not have any r_elevant information regarding-

Father Memenas did 
of 

out that the-would have actually been members 
based where they resided in the seventies. 

did not have a grade school and that 
.-vnHL<:O:u to attend a Catholic grade school would 

s in Mokena but presumably would have gone to the 

This Investigation Is Continuing "\tVith Supplemental Reports To Follow. 
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On Saturday, April 
who was married to 

The investigator had made previous attempts to contact 
two or three messages on her voice mail requesting a call back. 

She explained that she had been out of town and had just picked up the investigator's 
messages the previous day. 

mailing address is 

During the course of her interview, she made the following relevant statements: 

• 

• She stated unequivocally that he never talked about being sexually abused 

• 

• 

• 

member of the Catholic Church or anyone in his life. She stated that 
L:ur-lliiClten~u himself a Catholic (occasionally going to Mass) 

V'-'· ClOJLU.LL<I.UJ talked about growing up as a Catholic in lllinois, She stated 
that during those times, he never mentioned any type of abuse situation and 
never really talked much about his time in grade school. She never heard 
him mention Father Burnett's name in any context . 
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Date: Friday, January 05,2007 

PREDICATION 

The client requested that this office locate and interview of 
Mokena, Illinois and a St. Mary's parishioner regarding unsubstantiated reports that 
when he attended St. Mary's in the 1980's that his parents either refused to let him serve 
as an altar boy or required him quit being an altar boy because of concerns they had 
concerning Father Burnett. 

INVESTIGATION 

residing at 

On Thursday, January 4, 2007, Investigator Steven L. Kirby contacted ~y 
phone and conducted a telephonic interview. The following is a summary of that 
conversation: 

-=onfirmed that he a~ Parish in Mokena, illinois from 
1977 to 1985 and was a classmate of__.._. He stated that after­
allegations became blic information he heard about them from several sources. He 

an email offering his sympathies and support. -
and they had a brief discussion of the allegations, but 

did not relate any information to him other than what was 
news media. He further stated that did not give him 

also stated that in recently discussing this matter with his parents, his 
him that they thought "Burnett was weird." He said his parents told him 

that one of the reasons that~uraged him to be an altar boy was because of 
their concerns of Burnett. -=onfirmed that he had related this to --

stated that he never really wanted to be an altar boy and was never, in fact, 
a server at Mary's Parish. He further stated that he was nev~ather 
Burnett and was not aware of anyone who was. He stated tha-is the 
only person he knows that has made all~ and that he does not have any real 
firsthand knowledge as to whether or not-s allegations are true. 
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He did confirm that he considered himself a friend of-s and associated 
with him through the college years up to about ten y~d that they then 
fell mit of contact until recently when he heard about the allegations against Father 
Burnett. 

END OF REPORT 

c 
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I RESPONSE OF FATHER BURNETT I 

Prepared 

By 

Patrick Reardon 
(Civil Attorney for Father) 
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RESPONSE OF REVEREND JAMES R. BURNETT 
T ONBY 

History of allegations 

In approximately December, 2005, ~ade allegations against 
Father James Bumett accusing him of acts of sexual misconduct with a minor 
beginning with abuse during a sacrament of reconciliation. Father bas cooperated 
with the procedures of the Diocese of Joliet and remained absent from ministzy for 
the last year while these allegations have been investigated and :reviewed. As a part 
of this process of review, Father Burnett personally appeared before the Review 
Board of the Diocese and both presented his position and answered any questions. 
For this reason, ·Father will make only a brief additional written statement at this 
time SUilllJlarizing what has already been of record. 

c· Summary of previous response 

Father has never had any particular relationship wi~ He 
was a student at St. Mary School along with his brothers and sister. to 

s statemen~ Father Burnett was never a close friend of the 
dinner at their home and does not even know where they lived. 

Father Burnett believes that the Review Board has already investigated tb,e 
circumstances smrounding the accusation of inlproper conduct dming the sacrament 
of reconciliation. The 'location of the cenfession room and the glass block walls and 
the fact that teachers, other students, and often parents, were directly outside this 
glass block wall during children's confessions make an accusation of :misconduct in 
this context patently-false . Father did not take ~ut of the classroom for any 
reason. Such actions would have given rise to immediate questions by teachers and 
administrators. · 

Father remembers receiving one letter from 
asking Father to pray for - He responded with a letter 
prayers of his entire paris~g in that correspondence reterenct~d "'T"TT"'Tl 

related to the CWTent accusations. 

·- · ·- -- ­------------ -
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Father Burnett has previously answered the false accusations of-
. a personal meeting with the Review Board. He re-affinns his previous 

.., ................... , ............. and hereby restates his unconditional denial of these allegations. Father 
regrets that this person has chosen to make false statements about him. He has 
struggled to forgive and will pray for his accuser_ He respectfully requests that the 
false allegations against him be dismissed. 

Date: .Tanuaty 8. 2007 

-------------------------------




